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PASEGURUHAN NG MGA NAGLILINGKOD SA PAMAHALAAN 
(GOVERNMENT SERVICE INSURANCE SYSTEM) 
Financial Center, Roxas Blvd., Pasay City, 1308 
 

 

Supplemental Bid Bulletin No.  1 
 

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDER AND GENERAL GUIDELINES 
on the  

DISPOSITION OF GSIS ACQUIRED ASSETS 
 

December 9, 2013 
 
NOTICE TO BIDDERS 
 
This bid bulletin is issued to clarify the issues raised by various bidders during the Pre-Bid 
Conference held on November 25, 2013.  This shall form an integral part of the Bid Documents. 
 
It is conclusively presumed that in the preparation of its Bid, the Bidder has taken into account the 
information and procedures set forth in the Instructions to Bidder and General Guidelines and 
each Supplemental Bid Bulletin. 
 
 

 QUESTIONS  ANSWERS 

 
1 

 
What were the reasons for failed bidding last 
February? 
 

  
Either the prospective bidder failed to 
submit documentary requirements like tax 
clearance prior to bid date or there is only 
one bidder for the property. 
 

 
2 

 
Could you define “AS IS WHERE IS” basis.  Is it 
possible to know the issues and concerns of a 
specific property, such as pending legal cases, 
unpaid real estate taxes, occupants/dwellers, etc.? 
 

  
The definition of “AS IS WHERE IS” can 
be found on page 12 of 13 of the TOR. 
 
To date, GSIS is not aware of any legal 
impediment  relative to the properties for 
disposition.  GSIS assumes that the 
prospective bidders have made due 
diligence efforts prior to the bid date. 
 

 
3 

 
Would GSIS be in a position to issue a certification 
that these are the only known problems of each 
property?  We are willing to take the risk for 
unforeseen problems, but could we be informed on 
the problems already known to you? 
 

  
GSIS does not issue such Certification.  
Prospective bidders are encouraged to 
conduct their due diligence.  
 

 
4 

 
Does that mean that the winning bidder for the 
Polymedic Apartment 2 will have to shoulder the 
burden of making the informal occupants leave the 
property, including the handling/settlement of the 
litigation case? 
 

  
Yes.  However, Unit 5 already has an 
ejectment order against the occupant. 
 
The other occupants (Units 1 to 4) are still 
for ejectment. 

 
5 

 
Are there any regulatory restrictions on Properties 1 
and 2 (PHILCOMCEN and JAI ALAI), such as the 
maximum allowable floor area ratio and height 

  
Other than the restrictions annotated on 
their respective titles and the 
requirements of the National Building 
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restriction in the area? 
 
 

Code, GSIS is not aware of any other 
restrictions on development of the 
property as of the date of issuance of this 
Bid Bulletin. 
 

 
6 

 
With regards to Property 1 (Philcomcen), just to 
clarify what you’ve said about no height restriction.  
In Ortigas, usually there is a height restriction 
annotated on the title, and I was just looking at the 
title and it seems that there is a lacking page where 
such restriction may have been indicated.  Usually 
what happens is you have to pay a substantial 
amount to Ortigas Center to have this restriction 
lifted. 
 
When you apply for a construction permit, you will 
be informed of the restrictions.  I’m just looking at 
this xerox of the title – on the restrictions, number 4, 
second page.  Anyway, I think it’s the bidder’s 
discretion already because this will happen only 
when we build, so this will not pose any problem in 
the meantime. 
 

  
Office floors should have a minimum 
height of eighty (80) feet above the curb 
of the street in front of the building and in 
no case be less than six (6) stories and 
should be in accordance with the Building 
Code of the Philippines. 
 

 
7 

 
Is there a possibility of bidding below the minimum 
bid price if the bid comes out lower than that? 
 

  
No. 
 
 

 
8 

 
May we know how GSIS was able to acquire these 
properties – i.e., were these donated, purchased 
from private individuals, or are there any reversion 
clauses with respect to any of these properties? 
 
 

  
PHILCOMCEN is a foreclosed property. 
 
JAI ALAI is a swapping arrangement 
between GSIS and the Supreme Court. 
 

 
9 

 
For Property 1 (Philcomcen), that was also subject 
to legal cases before, correct? 
 

  
Yes. The legal case does not involve 
ownership.  The case has been resolved 
with finality by the Supreme Court of the 
Philippines. 
 

 
10 

 
Could we request for a scheduled inspection of the 
property just to ascertain its status/condition and that 
there are no occupants? 
 

  
Yes, you are welcome to do your physical 
due diligence.  You could also contact the 
IBAC Secretariat Head, Mr. Danilo 
Vinoya, thru telephone number 479-3538.  
Just give us at least a day in advance so 
that we could advise our Security 
Department of the date and time of your 
inspection. 
 

 
11 

 
Does GSIS have a certification on the structural 
integrity of PHILCOMCEN? 
 

  
None. 
 
 

 
12 

 
Will the local government undertake the demolition 
of PHILCOMCEN? 
 
 

  
No. 
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13 

 
We understand that there was a joint venture 
agreement before with respect to Property 1 
(Philcomcen).  Do we assume that the Supreme 
Court ruling will find such Joint Venture as already 
terminated? 
 

  
Yes. 
 
 

 
14 

 
For the JAI ALAI property, are you aware of any 
historical restriction on the property because of its 
neo-classical design before?  We have a project in 
Las Pinas and we are subjected to historical 
corridor. 
 
What are the restrictions – i.e., C1, C2, C3?  
Because such restriction has an effect on the price 
and the appraisal doesn’t consider the restrictions. 
 

  
NO.  In fact, the former Jai Alai structure 
has been demolished. 
 
 
 
 
With regard to the land classification of 
the former Jai Alai property, it is 
COMMERCIAL. 
 

 
15 

 
On property 1 (Philcomcen), if I remember it right, 
there was some problem with the local government 
insofar as real property tax is concerned.  GSIS 
maintained that it is tax exempt.  May we be 
informed about what that problem was specifically 
and do you perceive it to be something that the 
winning bidder should anticipate? 
 
In the previous arrangement with the Zapanta Group 
and the developer before, are you aware that there 
was some issue with the taxes imposed by the local 
government, particularly real property taxes? 
 
If there’s a property tax liability on the predecessor, 
will the buyer of the property be subject to such tax 
liability? 
 
Is it possible for us to get a tax clearance from the 
local government? 
 

  
GSIS has no knowledge of any tax 
assessment on the improvement of the 
former Philcomcen building. 
 
However, if GSIS receives any tax 
assessment between now and the bid 
date, we will inform all prospective 
bidders on the Bid Date. 
 
Also, prospective bidders are advised to 
conduct their own due diligence. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Please refer to the tax declaration of the 
former Philcomcen property stating the 
tax exempt status of GSIS. 
 

 
16 

 
Could you clarify what “Modification of Dropped 
Bid Envelopes” means? 
 

  
Section 5 BID RULES AND 
PROCEDURES Item No. 8-E of the 
Terms of Reference (TOR) states that 
between 9:00am and 11:00am of the bid 
date, a qualified bidder may modify his 
bid only ONCE. 
 

 
17 

 
How many times could the Bidders modify their 
bids? 
 

  
The prospective bidder can only modify 
bid ONCE. 

 
18 

 
Are the Bidders allowed to witness the opening of 
the bids? 
 

  
Yes. 
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19 
 

Are we allowed to bid for somebody?  For example, 
if my income does not show that I could pay half-
billion for the property, could I bid for somebody? 
 

  

Only registered bidders are allowed to 
submit formal bid. 
 
 

 
20 

 
Does GSIS allow individuals to bid?  If yes, what are 
the documentary requirements for individual bidders 
– resume, income tax return, diploma, residence 
certificate, etc.? 
 

  
Yes, individual buyers are allowed to bid. 
 
The requirements are as follows: 
 

1. As proof of citizenship, valid 
Philippine Passport or NSO-certified 
Certificate of Live Birth and Affidavit 
stating that the buyer is a Filipino 
citizen and has not lost his Filipino 
citizenship. 
 

2. As proof of identity, any of the 
following valid identification 
documents bearing signature and 
recent photo: 
 

2.1 Driver’s license  
2.2 Tax Identification ID 
2.3 Professional Regulation 

Commission (PRC) ID 
2.4 Company ID 

 
 
21 
 

 
Will there be a separate bid box for each property? 
 

May we suggest that there be one (1) bid box per 
property? 
 

  
There will only be one (1) bid box for all 
properties. 
 
 

 
 
22 
 

 
Can a subsidiary buy a property? 
 
So whoever bids has to register and pay the 
registration fee? 
 

Just to clarify – If you say that Company X pays the 
Joining Fee and has registered with the Committee 
for the disposition and then decides later on to let its 
subsidiary participate in the bidding.  Is that possible 
or should the subsidiary be registered as well at the 
onset and have paid a separate Joining Fee?  In 
what you have mentioned that there were 3 related 
companies that have submitted registration/ 
application and had paid the Joining Fee, there is a 
clause here under Section 4 that says Conflict of 
Interest.  So I suppose only one of those 3 in that 
example would have been allowed to bid since all 
bidders should be free and independent from other 
bidders.  Just to clarify if my interpretation is correct. 
 

  
YES, as long as the subsidiary company 
buys a bidding kit.  However, a subsidiary 
company cannot compete with the mother 
or any of its affiliates in the bidding of the 
same property. 
 

 

23 
 

 

Do you provide an advance copy of the Deed of 
Absolute Sale?  Because sometimes there are 
misunderstandings on the provisions which drag the 
execution like when you buy a property from a bank, 
there are a lot of provisions in the Deed of Absolute 
Sale. 
 

  

No. 
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24 
 

 
It says here that the payment of the balance of the 
bid price should be done within 5 working days from 
receipt of the Notice of Award, but it doesn’t say the 
date that corresponds to the signing of the Deed of 
Absolute Sale.  When will the Deed of Absolute Sale 
be signed? 
 

  
The execution/signing of the Deed of 
Absolute Sale will be done within 30 
working days from issuance of the Notice 
of Award. 
 

 
25 

 
On Property 1 (Philcomcen), you’re saying that 
GSIS is exempt from any real property taxes, and 
you’re saying further that the successors of GSIS 
will not be liable for any tax liability of the previous 
owner.  Am I correct?  Would GSIS be in a position 
to give us a warranty that the successor of GSIS as 
property owner will not, and will never, be liable for 
any tax liability of the previous owner?   Since as far 
as I know, Property 1 has a pending case on real 
property taxes. 
 

  
GSIS stands by its Tax Exempt status as 
stated in RA 8291 Section 39. 

 
26 
 

 
We just got a copy of the title and apparently there’s 
a requirement for a 40% set-back which was an old 
restriction and usually the lifting of this restriction 
requires a substantial payment.  What is the position 
of GSIS on this matter? 
 

  
There is no requirement on the title for a 
40% set-back. 
 
 
 

 
Queries through Email 
 
27 

 
Re the bid deposit, can it be a bid bond instead of an 
MC?  For this property it is a big amount.  Moreover, 
the second highest bidder will also be obligated to 
set aside the amount for 30 days or more. 
 

  
No.  Please refer to the Terms of 
Reference (TOR). 
 
 

 
28 
 

 
Was the GSIS able to verify with the local 
government of Pasig if there is an existing tax 
liability for the building? 
 
 
 

  
GSIS has no knowledge of any tax 
assessment on the improvement of the 
former Philcomcen building. 
 
Prospective bidders are advised to 
conduct their own due diligence. 
 

 
29 
 

 
Since GSIS is tax exempt, can we assume that it is 
also exempt from Capital Gains Tax? 
 

  
Yes. 
 

 
30 
 

 
Do we need to pay VAT for the BID? 
 
We heard that if it comes from Acquired Assets, 
there is no need to pay VAT? 
 

  
No.  The VAT refers to the Capital Gains 
Tax (CGT) which is a seller’s tax or 
payable by the seller.  Since the GSIS is 
a tax-exempt entity, the buyer has no 
obligation to pay such CGT. 
 

 
31 
 

 
Do you know the setbacks of Philcomcen building 
from Ortigas Ave. and ADB Ave.?  Is it 5 meters or 8 
meters from the roads? 
 

  
Refer to the Building Code of the 
Philippines as annotated at the back of 
the Philcomcen title. 
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32 
 

 
Can GSIS issue a disclosure letter or Executive 
Summary of all pending cases and issues pertaining 
to the Philcomcen and Jai Alai properties? 

 
Philcomcen and Jai Alai properties have 
no pending cases as of the date of 
issuance of this Bid Bulletin. 
 

 
33 
 

 
May we ask confirmation on whether GSIS has 
actual and physical possession of the mentioned 
properties? 
 

  
GSIS confirms that it has actual and 
physical possession of the properties, 
except Polymedic Apartment 2 as 
disclosed. 
 

 

34 
 

 

Are there any pending issues with the LGU of Pasig 
and Manila pertaining to its being tax exempt? 
 

  

None. 

 

35 
 

 

What are the zonal values of the above-mentioned 
properties? 
 

  

The zonal values in accordance with the 
Bureau of Internal Revenue valuation are 
the following: 
 

Philcomcen – PhP 90,000.00 
Jai Alai – PhP 40,000.00 

 
 

36 
 

 

On PHILCOMCEN 
 
a. Can the property be developed into a 

residential condominium? 
 
 
 
b. Can we request for a copy of the tax clearance 

covering the property? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
c. Who shall undertake demolition? 

 
 
 

 

d. When does GSIS plan to return all the 
machinery and equipment inside Philcomcen 
Bldg. to Goldloop and pay the monetary award 
by the SC? 

 

  

 
 
The type of development will depend on 
approvals to be obtained from the Ortigas 
Association and the Local Government 
Unit (Pasig City). 
 
Except for the Real Property Tax 
Declarations, which form part of the 
documents already given upon payment 
of the Joining Fee, GSIS does not secure 
tax clearances for its tax exemption 
provided for by its enabling charter, RA 
8291, Section 39. 
 
Procurement of demolition services is 
ongoing.  All rights, interests, and 
obligations of GSIS under the demolition 
contract, if any, will be passed on to the 
winning bidder. 
 
The return of machineries and equipment 
is ongoing. 
 
GSIS has already paid the monetary 
award. 
 

 

37 
 

 

On JAI ALAI 
 
a. Do you have any information regarding the 

embedded structures in the lot? 
 
 
 
b. Are there any tenants/illegal occupants on the 

property? 
 

  

 
 
Based on records, there is an unfinished 
structure comprised of horizontal and 
vertical structural steel; l-beams can be 
found at the site. 
 
None. 
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c. What is the status of the Real Property Tax 

(RPT)?  Is GSIS exempted from paying the 
RPT and does the LGU honor GSIS’ 
exemption? 

 
d. Can we request for a copy of the tax clearance 

covering the property? 

 
GSIS is tax-exempt and LGU honors this 
tax exemption. 
 
 
 
Except for the Real Property Tax 
Declarations, which form part of the 
documents already given upon payment 
of the Joining Fee, GSIS does not secure 
tax clearances for its tax exemption 
provided for by its enabling charter, RA 
8291, Section 39. 
 

 

The Bidders are enjoined to visit the GSIS Website (www.gsis.gov.ph) on a regular basis for 
updates or Supplemental Bid Bulletins. 
 

GSIS is selling its acquired assets on an AS IS WHERE IS basis, hence, we require all interested 
bidders to undertake legal and physical due diligence. 
 

For guidance and information of all concerned. 
 

 

 

(Sgd) SEVERINA L. RESURRECCION 

Vice Chairperson 

Investment Bids and Awards Committee 


